
 

Dulwich Community Council 
 

A community safety surgery will be held at 6.30pm prior to the meeting  
please come along 

and speak to community safety wardens and safer neighbourhood teams. 
 

Monday 13 December 2010 
7.00 pm 

Dulwich Grove United Reformed Church, East Dulwich Grove,  
London SE22 8RH 

 
Membership 
 

 

Councillor James Barber (Chair) 
Councillor Helen Hayes (Vice-Chair) 
Councillor Robin Crookshank Hilton 
Councillor Toby Eckersley 
Councillor Jonathan Mitchell 
Councillor Michael Mitchell 
Councillor Lewis Robinson 
Councillor Rosie Shimell 
Councillor Andy Simmons 
 

 

 
 
Members of the committee are summoned to attend this meeting 
Annie Shepperd 
Chief Executive 
Date: Friday 3 December 2010 
 

 
 

 

Order of Business 
 
 

Item 
No. 

Title Time 

 

1. INTRODUCTION AND WELCOME  
 

 

2. APOLOGIES  
 
 
 
 

 

Open Agenda



 
 
 
 

Item No. Title Time 
 
 

3. DISCLOSURE OF MEMBERS' INTERESTS AND DISPENSATIONS  
 

 

 The Chair to advise whether they have agreed to any item of urgent 
business being admitted to the agenda. 
 

 

4. ITEMS OF BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIR DEEMS URGENT  
 

 

 Members are asked to declare any interest or dispensation and the nature 
of that interest or dispensation which they may have in any of the items 
under consideration at this meeting. 
 

 

5. MINUTES FROM THE PREVIOUS MEETING (Pages 4 - 9) 
 

 

 To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 10 
November 2010. 
 

 

6. FEEDBACK FROM PREVIOUS MEETINGS (IF ANY)  
 

 

 MAIN BUSINESS 
 

 

7. DEPUTATIONS/PETITIONS (IF ANY)  
 

7.10 

 The chair to advise on any deputations or petitions received. 
 

 

8. CHAIR'S ANNOUNCEMENTS AND COMMUNITY PRESENTATIONS 
(Pages 10 - 11) 

 

7.15 

 • A representative from Patient Experience, NHS Southwark Primary 
Care Trust, will be available to respond to general health questions. 

 
• Information about Winter Service Plan and Winter Gritting will be 

available at the meeting.        
Website: http://www.southwark.gov.uk/wintergritting  

 
• Information about the Dog Control Order Consultation. 
 

 

9. COMMUNITY SAFETY UPDATES  
 

7.20 

 To note the Safer Neighbourhoods teams priorities discussed at the Police 
ward panel meetings. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 
 
 
 

Item No. Title Time 
 
 

10. SOUTHWARK PENSIONERS CENTRE  
 

7.30 

 A presentation from the Southwark Pensioners Centre to talk about 
bringing together organisations and how they would like to work more 
closely with the Council to deliver innovative services in the future. 
 

 

 BREAK AT 7.40 
 

 

 Opportunity for residents to speak to Councillors and Officers. 
 

 

11. HEALTH SERVICE PROVISION IN THE SOUTHWARK  
 

7.50 

 An Officer from Southwark’s Health & Community Services will attend to 
talk about changes to the health service provision in Southwark.  
 

 

12. CONSULTATION ON THE RESTRUCTURING OF THE SAFER 
NEIGHBOURHOODS TEAMS  

 

8.30 

 Police Chief Inspector Rob Harper will be present to talk about the 
proposed restructuring of the Safer Neighbourhoods Teams in Southwark. 
 

 

13. PUBLIC QUESTION TIME (Page 12) 
 

8.45 

 Please submit your written questions to the Neighbourhood Coordinator or 
Constitutional Officer. 
 

 

14. LIGHTING AND HIGHWAYS REPORT (Pages 13 - 20) 
 

8.55 

 Executive function  
 
To select the works to be funded from the proposed schemes in the 
Dulwich Community Council area set out in Appendix 2. 

 

15. NORTH CROSS ROAD MARKET CONSULTATION RESULTS (Page 21) 
 

9.05 

 To note the consultation results of the North Cross Road Market.  
 

 

 
Date:  Friday 3 December 2010 
 



  
INFORMATION FOR MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC 

 
CONTACT: Beverley Olamijulo, Constitutional Officer, Tel: 020 7525 
7234 or email: beverley.olamijulo@southwark.gov.uk  
Website: www.southwark.gov.uk 

 
ACCESS TO INFORMATION 

On request, agendas and reports will be supplied to members of the 
public, except if they contain confidential or exempted information. 

 

ACCESSIBLE MEETINGS  

The council is committed to making its meetings accessible.  For 
further details on building access, translation and interpreting services, 
the provision of signers and other access requirements, please contact 
the Constitutional Officer. 

Disabled members of the public, who wish to attend community council 
meetings and require transport assistance in order to attend, are 
requested to contact the Constitutional Officer. The Constitutional 
Officer will try to arrange transport to and from the meeting. There will 
be no charge to the person requiring transport. Please note that it is 
necessary to contact us as far in advance as possible, and at least 
three working days before the meeting.  

 

BABYSITTING/CARERS’ ALLOWANCES 

If you are a resident of the borough and have paid someone to look 
after your children or an elderly or disabled dependant, so that you can 
attend this meeting, you may claim an allowance from the council.  
Please collect a claim form from the Constitutional Officer at the 
meeting.  

 
DEPUTATIONS 
Deputations provide the opportunity for a group of people who are 
resident or working in the borough to make a formal representation of 
their views at the meeting. Deputations have to be regarding an issue 
within the direct responsibility of the Council. For further information on 
deputations, please contact the Constitutional Officer.  
 
 

For a large print copy of this pack, 
please telephone 020 7525 7234.  
 
 

 

Agenda Annex
1



Dulwich Community Council

Language Needs
If you would like information on the Community Councils translated into your
language please telephone 020 7525 7234 or visit the officers at 160 Tooley
Street, London SE1 2TZ

Spanish:

Necesidades de Idioma
Si usted desea información sobre los Municipios de la Comunidad traducida a
su idioma por favor llame al 020 7525 7234 o visite a los oficiales de 160 Tooley
Street, Londres SE1 2TZ

Portuguese:

Necessidades de Linguagem
Se você gostaria de informação sobre Community Councils (Concelhos
Comunitários) traduzida para sua língua, por favor, telefone para 020 7525 7234
ou visite os oficiais em 160 Tooley Street, London SE1 2TZ

Arabic:

020 7525 7234Tooley Street 160
LondonSE1 2TZ

French:

Besoins de Langue
Si vous désirez obtenir des renseignements sur les Community Councils traduits
dans votre langue, veuillez appeler le 020 7525 7234 ou allez voir nos agents à
160 Tooley Street, London SE1 2TZ

Bengali :

fvlvi cÖ‡qvRb

Avcwb hw` wb‡Ri fvlvq KwgDwbwU KvDwÝj m¤ú‡K© Z_¨ †c‡Z Pvb Zvn‡j 020 7525 7234 b¤̂‡i
†dvb Ki“b A_ev 160 Tooley Street, London SE1 2TZ wVKvbvq wM‡q Awdmvi‡`i mv‡_ †`Lv

Ki“b|

2



Yoruba:

Awon Kosemani Fun Ede
Bi o ba nfe àlàyé kíkún l’ori awon Ìgbìmò Àwùjo ti a se ayipada si ede abínibí re,

òsìsé ni ojúlé 160 Tooley Street , London SE1 2TZ .

Turkish:

Krio:

Na oose language you want
If you lek for sabi all tin but Community Council na you yone language, do ya
telephone 020 7525 7234 or you kin go talk to dee officesr dem na 160 Tooley
Treet, London SE1 2TZ.

3



 
 

Dulwich Community Council - Wednesday 10 November 2010 
 

 
 

DULWICH COMMUNITY COUNCIL 
 
MINUTES of the Dulwich Community Council held on Wednesday 10 November 2010 
at 7.00 pm at Christ Church, 263 Barry Road, London SE22 0JT  
 
 
PRESENT: Councillor James Barber (Chair) 

Councillor Helen Hayes (Vice-Chair) 
Councillor Robin Crookshank Hilton 
Councillor Toby Eckersley 
Councillor Jonathan Mitchell 
Councillor Michael Mitchell 
Councillor Lewis Robinson 
Councillor Rosie Shimell 
Councillor Andy Simmons 
 

OTHER MEMBERS 
PRESENT: 
 

Councillor Peter John 

OFFICER 
SUPPORT: 

Abdi Mohamed Ibrahim, Neighbourhood Coordinator  
Mark Whitehouse, Community Council Development Officer  
Beverley Olamijulo, Constitutional Officer 
 

 
 

1. INTRODUCTION AND WELCOME  
 

 The chair welcomed members of the public, councillors and officers to the community 
council meeting. 
 

2. APOLOGIES  
 

 An apology for lateness was received from Councillor Jonathan Mitchell.  
Councillor Andy Simmons announced that he was unable to stay for the duration of the 
meeting because he had to attend another meeting. 
 

3. DISCLOSURE OF MEMBERS' INTERESTS AND DISPENSATIONS  
 

 None were received. 
 

4. ITEMS OF BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIR DEEMS URGENT  
 

Agenda Item 5
4



 
 

Dulwich Community Council - Wednesday 10 November 2010 
 

 There were none. 
 

5. MINUTES  
 

 RESOLVED: 
 
That the minutes of the meeting held on 16 September be agreed as a correct record of 
the meeting, and signed by the chair.  
 

6. COMMUNITY SAFETY UPDATES  
 

 The Community Council noted the safer neighbourhood teams ward priorities for the 
Dulwich area: 
 
Priorities for College Ward SNT: 
• Anti social behaviour across the ward. 
• Responding to crime incidences involving fireworks and road safety. 
• Croxted Road Estate – responding to complaints involving mopeds and burglary, 

individuals were arrested.  
• Cannabis and weapons found on local estates. 
• Kingswood Estate – three arrests were made for street robberies during school safe 

patrols.  
• Dawson Heights Estate – arrests based on intelligence gathering. 
 
Priorities for Village Ward SNT: 
• Priorities remain unchanged from the last ward panel meeting. 
• SNT responded to high number of offences involving robberies particularly during the 

summer which occurred within or around the Dulwich Park which were mainly theft of 
bikes and mobile phones. 

• Worked actively during Halloween and Bonfire night 
• New Police initiative has been introduced which involves undertaking surveys to 

establish which neighbourhoods need targeting to address issues of crime.  
 
A question was asked about hand held speed cameras.  The SNT explained that they 
have identified roads in the area however it was felt further discussion needed to take 
place with local Councillors.  The Chair suggested members of the Dulwich Society and 
local residents attend the next ward panel meeting on the 18 January 2011. 
 
Priorities for East Dulwich SNT: 
• Priorities remain unchanged from the previous panel meeting, youth crime, burglary 

and offences concerning licensed premises. 
• Requested local residents to pick up ‘ free marking kit’  
• The team reported on speed camera offences and cautioned those motorists who 

were slightly over the speed limit. 
 
 
To view the full list of the safer neighbourhoods priorities please visit the Southwark Police 
website: http://www.met.police.uk/teams/southwark  
 

5



 
 

Dulwich Community Council - Wednesday 10 November 2010 
 

 

7. DEPUTATION PRESENTATION  
 

 Traffic calming issues in Red Post Post Hill  
 
Dulwich Community Council agreed the following motion in response to the deputation 
presentation concerning wider traffic issues around Red Post Hill – particular with regard 
to the removal of double decker buses from the no 42 bus route which causes vibration to 
residents’ homes in that area. 
 
AGREED: 
 
DCC requests the relevant Cabinet member and/or officers to take all appropriate steps: 
 
1. subject to official consultation with residents  to secure removal of 
 
 (a) the cushions on Red Post Hill between its junctions with Casino   
 Avenue and Herne Hill and their replacement with the minimum number of 
 islands/build-outs to comply with regulations; and 
 
 (b) subject to resources and compliance with regulations, the set of cushions 
 immediately to the south of the raised pedestrian crossing at the junction of 
 Casino Avenue and Red Post Hill; and 
 
2. to ascertain the intentions of Lambeth Council with regard to proposals, if any, for 

road closure or other measures on the north-west side of Denmark Hill/Herne Hill 
which might have an adverse effect on traffic flows in streets on the Southwark 
side of Denmark Hill/Herne Hill, and to make all necessary representations to 
Lambeth Council with a view to protecting the amenity of Southwark residents. 

 

8. COMMUNITY ANNOUNCEMENTS AND PRESENTATIONS  
 

 The following announcements were made: 
 
1. The Armistice Day Service on Thursday 11 November at 10:30am at West Lane 

Memorial, off Jamaica Rd, SE16.  
 
2. The official Remembrance Sunday service on Sunday 14 November at 10:30am at: 

The Old Municipal Offices, 151 to 153 Walworth Road, SE17. 
Other services included West Lane memorial, West Lane, SE16; Borough High Street; 
Kennington Lane; Dulwich Memorial; and Camberwell memorial. 

 
3. Southwark's consultation on Transforming Southwark's National Health Service (NHS) 

are holding meetings across the borough to update local people on how they are 
taking their plans forward and what this means for your health services in your area.    

 

9. A FAIRER FUTURE FOR ALL IN SOUTHWARK  
 

  

6



 
 

Dulwich Community Council - Wednesday 10 November 2010 
 

DCC notes the presentation from the leader of the Council concerning the budget 
consultation.  Residents were given an opportunity to vote for their preferences for 
spending or savings within the Council. 
 
Officers confirmed the responses from residents and ward councillors would be collated in 
form of a report on the data received and a cabinet member shall feedback this 
information in the New Year. 
 
 

10. HOLMDENE AVENUE - 2ND STAGE CONTROLLED PARKING ZONE (CPZ) 
CONSULTATION RESULTS  

 

 Executive function 
 
AGREED: 
 
1. That the results of the Holmdene Avenue 2nd stage controlled parking zone (CPZ) 

consultation be noted. 
 
2. That the parking layout for Holmdene Avenue (as an extension of Herne Hill CPZ), 

as detailed in appendix 1 of the report be approved subject to the outcome of any 
necessary statutory procedures. 

 

11. PUBLIC QUESTION TIME  
 

 There were no public questions. 
 

12. LOCAL PARKING AMENDMENT - RED POST HILL  
 

 Executive function 
 
AGREED: 
 
That the local parking amendment detailed in appendix 1 of the report, and outlined below, 
be approved for implementation subject to the outcome of any necessary statutory 
procedures: 
 

a) Red Post Hill (between Herne Hill and approx No. 81 Red Post Hill) – ‘at any time’ 
parking restrictions 

 
b) Half Moon Lane (near junction with Red Post Hill) – reduction and extension to 

some lengths of ‘at any time’ parking restrictions 
 

c) Red Post Hill (near junctions with Half Moon Lane and Village Way) – amendments 
to operational hours and length of existing parking restrictions. 

 

13. COMMUNITY COUNCILS HIGHWAYS AND LIGHTING CAPITAL INVESTMENT 2010-
11  

 

7



 
 

Dulwich Community Council - Wednesday 10 November 2010 
 

 Executive function  
 
Dulwich Community Council deferred the above item to ascertain further information on 
the proposed schemes. 
 

14. REALLOCATION OF THE CLEANER GREENER SAFER FUNDING 2010 -2011  
 

 Executive function  
 
AGREED: 
 
1. That the changes of scope of Sydenham Hill Estate greening and We Love East 

Dulwich, outlined in paragraphs 10 and 14-15 respectively be noted. 
 
2. That the reallocation of the available £10,000 from the Giles Coppice project 

(subject to further information and consultation with the Dulwich Estate) to the 
Croxted Road Security Gates and Little Bornes footpath as set out in paragraph 11 
of the report be approved. 

 
3. That the reallocation of available monies totalling £33,500 to the We Love East 

Dulwich scheme from the Eco Dry Cleaners and North Cross Road Alleyway 
scheme as set out in paragraphs 12-15 of the report be approved. 

 
4. That £5,000 of the £30,000 originally awarded to the East Dulwich Carbon Fund, 

be reallocated to fund a potential shortfall in the cost of installing electric pop up 
points in North Cross Road.  If all or some of the £5000 is not needed – this would 
remain within the budget for East Dulwich Carbon Fund as set out in Appendix 1 of 
the report. 

 
5. That the reallocation of available monies totalling £35,000 to Calton Avenue 20 

mph zone works be approved. 
 
6. That £35,000 originally awarded to the Dulwich Sports Club be available for re-

allocation. 
 
7. That the £10,500 originally awarded to Positive Education Learning Organisation 

(PELO) be reallocated to East Dulwich Grove Estate Tenants & Residents 
Association (Edge TRA) meeting room. 

 
8. Agreed that £40,000 of funds available for reallocation be allocated to Red 
 Post Hill 20mph zone works. 
 
 
 

15. EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC  
 

 That the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on the 
grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in 
paragraphs 1 and 2, Access to Information Procedure rules of the Constitution. 
 

8



 
 

Dulwich Community Council - Wednesday 10 November 2010 
 

16. LEA SCHOOL GOVERNOR APPOINTMENTS  
 

 Executive function  
 
AGREED:  
 
1. That George Grime be re-appointed as a LA governor representative at Heber Primary 

School. 
 
2. That Mrs Deborah Barnes Jones be appointed as a LA governor representative at 

Dulwich Village CE Infants School. 
 

 The meeting ended at 9.15 pm 
 
 CHAIR:  
 
 
 DATED:  
 

 
 

9



 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The council in partnership with the RSPCA, Southwark Police and Battersea Dogs 
Home are working hard to encourage responsible dog ownership, and deal with 
irresponsible dog owners and incidents of dangerous and out of control dogs.  

We want to know if you would like the council to introduce new powers, called dog control orders 
(DCOs), which would allow on the spot fines of £50 for such offences borough wide. 

These separate orders are: 

• Failing to remove dog fouling (fouling of land by dogs order) - all public land borough wide 

• Not putting and keeping a dog on a lead when asked to by an authorised officer (dogs to be 
placed on a lead when requested by an authorised officer) - all public land borough wide  

• Permitting a dog to enter an area from which it is excluded (dogs exclusion order) - specific areas 
only i.e. gated children's play areas. 

The DCO consultation is taking place to see if there is a public desire and need to have these 
regulations adopted across the borough.  Should the results show a need to introduce DCOs then 
residents will be consulted on the details of what and where the DCOs will be introduced. 

How to have your say 
 
We want to hear your views on whether or not you think there is a need to introduce the proposed dog 
control order regulations across Southwark. 

The consultation will take place between 1 November 2010 to 15 February 2011. 

For further information and to complete the online questionnaire visit the link below: 

http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200030/community_safety_and_enforcement 

Alternatively complete the questions over the page and return in the freepost envelope provided. 

 

www.southwark.gov.uk 

Dog Control Order 
Consultation  
title 
Tell us what you think about Dog Control Orders 

Agenda Item 8
10



Dog Control Order questionnaire 

Please complete the questions below. 

1. Gender 

Male o  Female o  Transgender o  Prefer not to say       o 

2. Age 

Under 18 o 18 to 15 o  26 to 34 o  35 to 49 o 

50 to 59 o    over 60 o 

3. Do you live in Southwark? 

Yes o  No o 

4. If yes, which community council area do you live in? 

Bermondsey o  Camberwell o     Rotherhithe o  Borough & Bankside o 

Peckham o   Peckham Rye & Nunhead o   Walworth o 

Dulwich o 

 

5. Are you a dog owner? 

Yes o No o 

6. To what extent do you agree or disagree that dog owners should be made responsible for cleaning up their 

dogs fouling 

Strongly agree o  Agree o  Disagree o Strongly disagree o  No opinion o 

 

7. To what extent do you agree or disagree that authorised officers should be able to instruct dog owners to put 

their dogs on a lead if they are causing a nuisance or danger to other people or their dogs? 

Strongly agree o  Agree o  Disagree o Strongly disagree o  No opinion o 

 

8. To what extent do you agree or disagree that dogs should be excluded from designated children's play areas? 

(Please note: a 'designated children's play area' refers to an area with children's play equipment that is gated and 

fenced off). 

Strongly agree o  Agree o  Disagree o Strongly disagree o  No opinion o 

 

9. To what extend do you agree or disagree with the suggested £50 fine for those people who ignore the 

proposed dog control orders? 

Strongly agree o  Agree o  Disagree o Strongly disagree o  No opinion o 
 

11



 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Dulwich Community Council 
 
 

Soap box session 
 question form 

 

 
Your name: 
 
 
 
 
Your mailing address: 
 
 
 
 
 
What is your question? 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Please give questions to Beverley Olamijulo, Constitutional Officer, or Abdi Mohamed 
Ibrahim, Neighbourhood Coordinator or Mark Whitehouse, Community Council Development 
Officer. 

 
Agenda Item 13

12



 
 

  

 
Item No.  
14 
 

Classification: 
Open 

Date: 
13 December  2010 

Meeting Name:  
Dulwich  
Community Council 

Report title: 
 

Community Councils Highways and Lighting Capital 
Investment 2010-11 

Ward(s) or groups affected: 
 

Those in the Dulwich Community Council Area 

From: 
 

Gill Davies, Strategic Director Environment and 
Housing 

 
 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
 
1. To select  the works to be funded from the proposed schemes in the Dulwich community 

council area as set out in appendix 2. 
 
2. To note budget breakdown including underspend by ward from last year 2009-10 as 
 set out in appendix 2. 
 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
3. The declining quality of public highway coupled with extreme weather events has led 
 to further deterioration – with some non principal, unclassified roads being particularly 
 affected.  Given the nature of these roads and the lower level of traffic flows it is 
 unlikely that such locations will feature in any major resurfacing programme. Without 
 the necessary capital allocation to attend to such locations, complaints of poor road 
 surfaces can only be dealt with through the reactive maintenance programme.    
 
4. As part of the approved Highways capital investment programme for 2010 -2011 a 
 significant proportion has been devolved to each community council area 
 
5. Each Community Council will receive £100,000 for highways surface improvements 
 and £75,000 for Lighting improvements of their choice 
 
6.  At the last Dulwich Community Council on 16 September 2010,  Members 

 agreed that a revised list of the lighting and highways schemes should be  presented 
 to the next meeting on 10 November 2010 giving particular regard  to the roads 
 suggested by local ward councillors in order of priority and  breakdown of costing for 
 each scheme. 

 
7.  Dulwich Community Council also requested a budget breakdown including 

 underspend by ward from last year’s highways and lighting capital  investment which 
 is attached to this report.   

 
8. There is an current underspend of £66,666.66 across the Dulwich Community 
 Council area and this can be brought forward into the project schemes for 
 2010 – 2011.   
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 14
13



 
 

  

 
 
KEY ISSUES FOR CONSIDERATION 
 
Engineers Selections  
 
5. As an aid to the selection process relevant engineers have provided a range of 

required works and indicative costs for their implementation.   
 
6. In addition to the resurfacing selections provided it has been agreed and authorised 

that it could appropriate to spend the surfacing money on minor patching and pothole 
repairs should a Community Council wish to do so.  

 
Community Council Selections 
 
7. This money can be spent on any asset renewal or replacement project selected by 

the Community Council with the caveats that it cannot be spent on traffic safety or 
parking schemes, non functional or decorative installations and / or non-essential 
works. 

 
Delivery     
 
8. Once the Community Council has made their selections by the method of their choice 

the Asset Management BU will design and deliver the works as soon as possible.   
 
 
Community Impact Statement 
 
9. There are no specific community impact issues arising from the recommendations. 
 
 
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
 
Background Papers Held At Contact 
Highways Capital 
Investment Programme 
Decision 29/03/2010 

160 Tooley Street 
PO Box 64529 
2nd Floor, Hub 4 
Southwark Council 
London SE1P 
5LX  
 

Alexa Coates, Principal 
Constitutional Officer 
 
020 7525 7385 

 
APPENDICES 
 

No. Title 
Appendix 1  Dulwich Candidate Schemes 
Appendix 2 Budget breakdown of Lighting and Highways Projects, 2009 -

2010  
 

 
 
 
 
 

14



 
 

  

 
AUDIT TRAIL 
 
Lead Officer Gill Davies, Director Environment and Housing 
Report Author Des Waters, Head of Public Realm 
Version Final 
Dated 2 December 2010 
Key Decision? No 
CONSULTATION WITH OTHER OFFICERS / DIRECTORATES 
Officer Title Comments Sought Comments included 
Strategic Director of Communities, 
Law & Governance 

No No 

Finance Director No No 
Date final report sent to Constitutional Support Services 2 December 

2010 
 

15



PREVIOUS REPORT  
 presented at meeting on 10 November 2010 

 

Highway Candidate Schemes for Community Council funding  2010-11 Under spend from 2009-10  £58,796 

Council  Dulwich  2010 -11 allocation  £100,000 

  Available for 2010 -11 £158,796 

Existing Situation Candidate Scheme   
Condition Report  Existing site photos 

Proposed Work Estimated 
Cost 

College Road  
(College Ward) 

Carriageway :Subsiding trench 
reinstatements, local subsidence, repeated 
patching in various stages of deterioration,  
rutting, longitudinal cracking , local transverse 
cracking, poor channel alignment, evidence of 
pot holes due to last cold spell,  
 

 
 

Carriageway: Resurfacing, full depth reconstruction in some 
locations, channel reprofiling, replacement of traffic calming 
measures, replacement of road marking 
 

£60,000 

Seely Drive 
(College Ward) 

Carriageway :Subsiding trench 
reinstatements, local subsidence, repeated 
patching in various stages of deterioration, 
aggregate stripping, rutting, longitudinal 
cracking , local transverse cracking, poor 
channel alignment, evidence of pot holes due 
to last cold spell,  
Footways: Untidy condition, relatively low 
footfall, important walking route, tree root 
lifting of paving, untidy tree pits     

 

Carriageway: Resurfacing ,full depth reconstruction in some 
locations, channel reprofiling, replacement of traffic calming 
measures, replacement of road marking 
Footways: Repave to Council standard,  reinstate cross 
overs,      

£50,000 

Landell Road 
(East Dulwich Ward) 

Footways: Untidy condition, important 
walking route, Uneven Footway surface. 

 
 

Footways: Repave to Council standard, reinstate cross overs,      

 
 
 
£70,000 

     

16



PREVIOUS REPORT  
 presented at meeting on 10 November 2010 

 

 
 
Pellatt Road 
(East Dulwich Ward) 

 
Footways: Untidy condition, important 
walking route, , Uneven Footway surface 

 
 

 
Footways: Repave to Council standard, reinstate cross overs. 

£65,000 

Roseway 
(Village Ward) 

 
 
Carriageway :local subsidence, repeated 
patching in various stages of deterioration, 
aggregate stripping,  high density of informal  
cracking ,  
 

 
 

 
 
Carriageway: Resurfacing, channel reprofiling, replacement 
of road marking 
 

£85,000 

Bowen Drive 
(College Ward) 

 
 
Carriageway : local subsidence, repeated 
patching in various stages of deterioration, 
aggregate stripping, rutting, longitudinal 
cracking , local transverse cracking, poor 
channel alignment,  
 

 
 

 
 
 
Carriageway: Resurfacing full depth reconstruction in some 
locations, channel reprofiling, replacement of traffic calming 
measures, replacement of road marking 
 

£45,000 

 
 
 
 

    

  
 
 

17



PREVIOUS REPORT  
 presented at meeting on 10 November 2010 

 

 
 
 
 
 
Street Lighting Candidate Schemes for Community Council funding  2010-2011 Under spend from 2009-10  £39,238.67 

  Dulwich 2010 -11 allocation  £75,000 

  Available for 2010 -11 £114,238.67 

Existing Situation Candidate Scheme 
(Listed in priority 
order)   

Condition Report  Existing site photos Proposed Work Estimated 
Cost 

1) Dulwich Wood Park 
(Ward – College) 

This road has 31 existing lighting columns of 
which, 3 are structurally dangerous, 17 are 
structurally dilapidated and 1 is showing signs 
of structural dilapidation.  

To follow if selected 

 
A new lighting scheme is required to replace structurally 
compromised  lighting columns and bring the road up to 
current standards 
 

£62,00 

 
2) Barry Road 
(Ward – East 
Dulwich/Peckham Rye) 
 

This road has 41 existing lighting columns of 
which, 6 are structurally dangerous, 19 are 
structurally dilapidated and 1 is showing signs 
of structural dilapidation.  

To follow if selected 
 
Replace the 6 structurally dangerous & 19 structurally 
dilapidated columns. 
 

£42,500 

3) South Croxted 
Road 
(Ward – College) 

This road has 32 existing lighting columns of 
which, 11 are structurally dangerous, 5 are 
structurally dilapidated and 11 are showing 
signs of structural dilapidation.  

To follow if selected 

 
A new lighting scheme is required to replace structurally 
compromised  lighting columns and bring the road up to 
current standards 
 

£54,400 

4) Crystal Palace 
Parade 
(Ward – College) 

This road has 19 existing lighting columns of 
which, 3 are structurally dangerous, 6 are 
structurally dilapidated and 2 are showing 
signs of structural dilapidation.  

To follow if selected 
 
Replace the 3 structurally dangerous & 6 structurally 
dilapidated columns. 
 

£15,300 

5) Fountain Drive 
(Ward –College) 

This road has 14 existing lighting columns of 
which, 2 are structurally dangerous, 3 are 
structurally dilapidated and 1 is showing signs 
of structural dilapidation.  

To follow if selected 
 
Replace the 2 structurally dangerous & 3 structurally 
dilapidated columns. 
 

£8,500 

6) Rusholme Road 
(Ward – College) 

This road has 5 existing lighting columns of 
which, 2 are structurally dilapidated and 2 are 
showing signs of structural dilapidation.  

To follow if selected 

 
A new lighting scheme is required to replace structurally 
compromised  lighting columns and bring the road up to 
current standards 
 

£8,500 

7) Croxted Road This road has 19 existing lighting columns of To follow if selected Replace the 1 structurally dangerous & 5 structurally £10,200 

18



PREVIOUS REPORT  
 presented at meeting on 10 November 2010 

 

(Ward – Village) which, 1 is structurally dangerous, 5 are 
structurally dilapidated and 5 are showing 
signs of structural dilapidation.  

dilapidated columns. 
 

8) Dulwich Wood 
Avenue 
(Ward – College) 

This road has 23 existing lighting columns of 
which, 3 are structurally dangerous, 4 are 
structurally dilapidated and 3 are showing 
signs of structural dilapidation.  

To follow if selected 
Replace the 3 structurally dangerous & 4 structurally 
dilapidated columns. 
 

£11,900 

9) Paxton 
Roundabout 
(Ward – College) 

This road has 8 existing lighting columns of 
which 3 are structurally dilapidated  To follow if selected Replace the 3 structurally dilapidated columns. 

 £5,100 

10) St Stephens 
Church Path 
(Ward - College) 

This road has 5 existing lighting columns of 
which, 1 is structurally dangerous and 4 are 
showing signs of structural dilapidation.  

To follow if selected Replace the 1 structurally dangerous column. 
 £1,700 

11) Crystal Palace 
Road 
(Ward –East 
Dulwich/Peckham Rye) 

This road has 45 existing lighting columns of 
which, 1 is structurally dangerous and the 
road consists of a mixture of lamp and column 
types. The majority of the lanterns are now 
obsolete and lamps are due be banned within 
the next couple of years under the EuP 
(Energy Using Products) directive. 
 

To follow if selected 

 
A new lighting scheme is required to replace structurally 
compromised  lighting columns and bring the road up to 
current standards 
 

£76,500 

 
12) Friern Road 
(Ward – East 
Dulwich/Peckham Rye) 
 
 

The road consists of a mixture of lamp and 
column types. The majority of the lanterns are 
now obsolete and lamps are due be banned 
within the next couple of years under the EuP 
(Energy Using Products) directive. 
 

To follow if selected 

 
A new lighting scheme is required to replace structurally 
compromised  lighting columns and bring the road up to 
current standards 
 

£68,00 

13) Crescent Wood 
Road 
(Ward – College) 

This road has 11 existing lighting columns of 
which7 are showing signs of structural 
dilapidation.  

To follow if selected 

 
A new lighting scheme is required to replace structurally 
compromised  lighting columns and bring the road up to 
current standards 
 

£30,600 

     
 
 
 
 

 

19



REVISED REPORT 
Meeting on 13 December 2010 

  

Highway Candidate Schemes for Community Council funding  2010-11 Under spend from 2009-10  £58,796 

Council  Dulwich  2010 -11 allocation  £100,000 

  Available for 2010 -11 £158,796 

Existing Situation Candidate Scheme   
Condition Report  Existing site photos 

Proposed Work Estimated 
Cost 

College Road  
(College Ward) 

Carriageway :Subsiding trench 
reinstatements, local subsidence, repeated 
patching in various stages of deterioration,  
rutting, longitudinal cracking , local transverse 
cracking, poor channel alignment, evidence of 
pot holes due to last cold spell,  
 

 
 

Carriageway: Resurfacing, full depth reconstruction in some 
locations, channel reprofiling, replacement of traffic calming 
measures, replacement of road marking 
 

£60,000 

Seely Drive 
(College Ward) 

Carriageway :Subsiding trench 
reinstatements, local subsidence, repeated 
patching in various stages of deterioration, 
aggregate stripping, rutting, longitudinal 
cracking , local transverse cracking, poor 
channel alignment, evidence of pot holes due 
to last cold spell,  
Footways: Untidy condition, relatively low 
footfall, important walking route, tree root 
lifting of paving, untidy tree pits     

 

Carriageway: Resurfacing ,full depth reconstruction in some 
locations, channel reprofiling, replacement of traffic calming 
measures, replacement of road marking 
Footways: Repave to Council standard,  reinstate cross 
overs,      

£50,000 

Landell Road 
(East Dulwich Ward) 

Footways: Untidy condition, important 
walking route, Uneven Footway surface. 

 
 

Footways: Repave to Council standard, reinstate cross overs,      

 
 
 
£70,000 

     

20



REVISED REPORT 
Meeting on 13 December 2010 

  

 
 
Pellatt Road 
(East Dulwich Ward) 

 
Footways: Untidy condition, important 
walking route, , Uneven Footway surface 

 
 

 
Footways: Repave to Council standard, reinstate cross overs. 

£65,000 

Roseway 
(Village Ward) 

 
 
Carriageway :local subsidence, repeated 
patching in various stages of deterioration, 
aggregate stripping,  high density of informal  
cracking ,  
 

 
 

 
 
Carriageway: Resurfacing, channel reprofiling, replacement 
of road marking 
 

£85,000 

Bowen Drive 
(College Ward) 

 
 
Carriageway : local subsidence, repeated 
patching in various stages of deterioration, 
aggregate stripping, rutting, longitudinal 
cracking , local transverse cracking, poor 
channel alignment,  
 

 
 

 
 
 
Carriageway: Resurfacing full depth reconstruction in some 
locations, channel reprofiling, replacement of traffic calming 
measures, replacement of road marking 
 

£45,000 

 
 
 
 

    

  
 
 

21



REVISED REPORT 
Meeting on 13 December 2010 

  

Street Lighting Candidate Schemes for Community Council funding  2010-2011 
(Community Council Selections by Ward) 

Under spend from 2009-10  £12,748.67 

  Dulwich – College Ward 2010 -11 allocation  £25,000 

 *Note* listed prices includes a contingency amount which will cover overspend Available for 2010 -11 £37,748.67 

Existing Situation Candidate Scheme 
(Listed in priority 
order)   

Condition Report  Existing site photos Proposed Work Estimated 
Cost 

1) Crescent Wood 
Road 
(Ward – College) 

This road has 11 existing lighting columns of 
which 7 are showing signs of structural 
dilapidation. Columns are also placed too far 
apart to effectively light the road 

To follow if selected 

 
A complete new lighting scheme is required to replace 
structurally compromised  lighting columns and bring the road 
up to current standards 
 

£39,375.25  

 
 

Street Lighting Candidate Schemes for Community Council funding  2010-2011 
(Community Council Selections by Ward) 

Under spend from 2009-10  £25,000.00 

  Dulwich – East Dulwich Ward 2010 -11 allocation  £25,000 

 *Note* listed prices includes a contingency amount which will cover overspend Available for 2010 -11 £50,000.00 

Existing Situation Candidate Scheme 
(Listed in priority 
order)   

Condition Report  Existing site photos Proposed Work Estimated 
Cost 

1) Friern Road 
(Ward – East Dulwich) 

This road has 35 existing lighting columns of 
which 1 is structural dilapidation and there are 
a mixture of column and lantern types 

To follow if selected 
 
Replace 1No structurally dilapidated column complete and 
upgrade 34No to White Light using Cosmo Lantern  
 

£21,222.88 

2) Crystal Palace 
Road (Ward – East 
Dulwich) 

This road contains a mixture of column and 
lantern types To follow if selected Upgrade 18No columns to White Light using Cosmo Lanterns 

(LC44 to LC27) – Upgrade 7 SOX Lanterns to SON £14,923.76 

3) Dunstans Road 
(Ward – East Dulwich) 

This road contains a mixture of column and 
lantern types To follow if selected Upgrade 11 SOX Lanterns to SON £3,374.12 

4) Barry Road (Ward – 
East Dulwich) 

This road has 41 existing lighting columns of 
which 4 are structural dilapidation To follow if selected Replace 4No structurally dilapidated column complete reuse 

the existing 150w SON Lanterns £6,600.61 

 
 
 
 
 

22



REVISED REPORT 
Meeting on 13 December 2010 

  

Street Lighting Candidate Schemes for Community Council funding  2010-2011 
(Community Council Selections by Ward) 

Under spend from 2009-10  £1,490.00 

 Dulwich – Village Ward 2010 -11 allocation  £25,000 

 Available for 2010 -11 £26,490.00 

Existing Situation Candidate Scheme 
(Listed in priority 
order)   

Condition Report  Existing site photos Proposed Work Estimated 
Cost 

1) Howletts Road 
(Ward – Village) This road has 4No older SON units To follow if selected 

 
Replace 4No columns complete, install White Light scheme 
using Cosmo Lantern  
 

£7,293.35 

2) Warmington Road 
(Ward – Village) This road has 6No older SON units To follow if selected 

 
Replace 6No columns complete, install White Light scheme 
using Cosmo Lantern  
 

£10,940.03 

2) East Dulwich Grove 
(bus stop) 
(Ward – Village) 

This road has 39 existing lighting columns of 
which 1 is structural dilapidation – This is 
intensified by security concerns at the same 
location 

To follow if selected 
 
Replace 1No twin arm column complete, fit 150w Son Road 
Side and 35w White Light Lantern Footway Side 
 

£2,550.58 

 

23



Briefing Note to Dulwich Community Council – 13 December 2010 

North Cross Road Market Consultation results 

A consultation was carried out in October 2010 to ascertain the views of the local 
community, traders, and businesses on extending the current Market from 20 to 30 
pitches, and adding Sunday as an extra trading day. An advert was placed in the 
press on 30th September to advise of consultation, and 2000 questionnaires were 
distributed to residents in the streets around the market. The questionnaire was also 
put up online. 

The consultation for North Cross Road came to an end on 5 November 2010.  It was 
left open until Friday 12 November for 7 residential properties of the Old School 
Building as these were missed out during the delivery process. 

The consultation results came out in favour of both questions agreeing to add 10 
pitches to the existing 20 and add Sunday trading to the existing designation 
of Monday - Saturday. 

The results were as follows:-  

A total of 339 responses were returned.  

Of those written responses received 88 from 89 were from residents of the SE22 
area. Of those responses: 

76% are in favour of the extension of 20 pitches to 30 pitches.  

66% are in favour of adding Sunday to the Monday to Saturday designation. 

Of those returned by email, the remaining 150, identified by their IP address. 

79.2% are in favour of the extension of 20 pitches to 30 pitches.  

63% are in favour of adding Sunday to the Monday to Saturday designation. 

Of total responses the results were: 

92.9% are residents  

78.2% are in favour of the extension of 20 pitches to 30 pitches.  

64% are in favour of adding Sunday to the Monday to Saturday designation.  

58.9% didn't want the market to stay the same.  

A report will be written up on the basis of the consultation findings and presented to a 
Licensing Committee in January 2011. 

If agreed by the Licencing committee, the changes would be formally implemented 
from March 2011. 

Agenda Item 15
24



DISTRIBUTION LIST                                                       MUNICIPAL YEAR 2010/11 
COUNCIL:  DULWICH COMMUNITY COUNCIL 

               NOTE:    Original held by Constitutional Support Unit; amendments to Beverley Olamijulo 
(Tel: 020 7525 7234)  

 

OPEN                                                 COPIES OPEN COPIES 
 
To all Members of the Dulwich Community 
Council: 
Cllr James Barber (Chair) 
Cllr Helen Hayes (Vice Chair)                      1 
Cllr Robin Crookshank Hilton                       1 
Cllr Toby Eckersley                                      1 
Cllr Rosie Shimell                                         1 
Cllr Jonathan Mitchell                                   1 
Cllr Michael Mitchell                                     1 
Cllr Lewis Robinson                                     1 
Cllr Andy Simmons                                      1 
 
Cllr Lisa Rajan                                               1 
 
Libraries: (Newington & Dulwich)                2 
Local Studies Library                                     1 
 
Press: 
Southwark News                                            1 
South London Press                                      1 
 
MEMBERS OF PARLIAMENT 
Tessa Jowell M.P                                           1 
 
Constitutional Support Officer                    110 
 
OTHERS 
Shahida Nasim 
LBS Audit Manager 
Ground Floor  
Tooley Street 
SE1                                                                1 

 
 
TRADE UNIONS 
UNISON Southwark Branch                                              1 
Roy Fielding, GMB/APEX                                                 1 
Mike Young TGWU/ACTS                                                1 
Tony O’Brien, UCATT                                                      1 
 
TOTAL DISTRIBUTION                                              130 
 
 
 
 
 
Dated: 3 December 2010 


	Agenda
	
	languages for Dulwich

	5 Minutes from the previous meeting
	8 Chair's announcements and community presentations
	13 Public Question Time
	14 Lighting and Highways Report
	Previous report on lighting and highways schemesin Dulwich
	Revised report on lighting and highway schemes in Dulwich

	15 North Cross Road Market consultation results
	

